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Jewish Historical Scelety Oral History
Dorcthy Flnger interviewed by Yetia Chalken July 29, 1953

Dorothy, would you llke to iell us where you vwere born, when, and something
about your =arly 1life?

My maiden name was, in Polish, Disha Xraushar (?) I was born in in Hararov(?),
Poland on August 8, 1929, I vwas an only child, My parents had 2 small
department store and I had & very happy youth, golng to school, playing with
friends, I was even allowed to sometimes hang arownd ard watch in the store.
ne of the things they would permit me was to pour perfums inte 1litile

bottles; in Poland the perfume did not come wrapped individually as beautifully
as it does herr, It came in a big boitle and you welghed it and poured 1t.
These Were veiy happy yeadrs,

Tour parents had a retail shop?

Yes, at first ladies garments.

iere they comfortable? Uhat was thelr .cooncmic (status)?
I would say upper middle c¢lass, I was told it was called the "pecca®, which
means the approtoctary (2) which means the merchandise was very

expensive for that region where we lived,
Jdhat about your Jewish backgroumd?

I went to a Zionist (?) Yebrew school afier school, which had nothing %o do
With religion, but it had to do with Zionism, with Palestine. My parents

did attend the symagogue, and on the High Helidays, I went later on, but I
never attended any = they didn't have any - the _ had it
so 1t was elther golng to the Heddrah {?) or the Hebrew schocl, modern
Hebraew school, Unfortwmtely, in Septamber, 1939, the famous Jorld War IT
began, and Hitler the war on Poland and Poland help up for two weeks and 1t
was divided between Hitler and Stalin, The part where I came from, which was
the eastern part, called Galltsia (?), was occupied by the Russlan army, from

Sepitem ber 1939 until June or July 1941, Life suddenly became very difficult for

us; of course, we didn’t know what was in store, My parents' store was nation-
alized, The goverrmeni tock it over. They put a lock on the door.

You no longer could worlk in it, or yocur parents?
Not in the store or have the income from it, Ve vere stlll quite comforiable.
What did your parents do during that time?

I really don't rcmember, e Were hiding most of the tlme because they were
going to take us to Siberia. On Friday nights, Ffor some reason, flrst of

all they sent all the peopl whe came from the other part of Peland; many pecple
ran away xnowing that Hitler wag coming would run across the water. Thesc long
trains would stand 2t the station, Most of these poople Wwere Jewish, ¢f course.
and also the people they decided werc anti-communist or bourgeolse, they were
sent 4o labor camps, and we had successfully, and luckily, or unluckily,
maybe later on in history, we found out we were unlucky , because some of the
people who were taken to Russia survived. Then Russia established a school
system, where before %~ all went to publliec schools,

Let's go tack to your education, You were sducated in Polish schools first,

I finished three years of public scheol in 1639, In l'oland you-starl school &t 7,
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nished three grades and then the Russians came,
whereby the Polish went to & Polish-speaking

-

arnd in Russia, tooc, I
system
ed half the citizens were Feolish and half were

They established the
school, Now where dWe
Ukranian,

ini
yst
liv

Belng Jewish, did that put you in the Polish category?

Yeg, but the Russlans developed a new system, They put all the Jews into

a J=wish-speaking school, They immedlately separated the Jews, the Ukranians,

2rd the Poles, They created a nevw clazs system, I studied two years urder
this new system vhere everything was written or spoken and faught iv Jeulsh,

Jeuishs You mean Ylddish?

y in ¥Yiddish, Before we hadn®t had any Yiddish; I didn't speak any
Yiddish, I spoke Polish,

dow about Russian? Did you have to lesarn lussian?

we nad to learn Russian; before that we had to learn Ukranian, because 2 great
percentage was Ukranlan, so we studled Ukrenlan and Polish, dhen the Russlans

came, wWwe had to study Russian and Yiddish, those who were Jewish, The reason
Was to segregate us, the same reasons to day that the Jew has the

stamped on his passport., e thought things werc pretty bad, but of course,
we didn't haye luxurics, but #e were not hungry., DSut when Hitler attacked

Russia, June™s or July - 1941, the Cerman armies marched in and the Russian
ar

into your area

into our area, aml of course, then hell broke out., Tirst of all, the
Cermans let the Ukzanians have an imndependent time, for about +two weeks)
the Ukranlans aye notoriously anti-femltic, amd tarbarous, and they
magsacred; and the Germans closed thelr eyes, because they Were golng to do
the same. Jo they let them have thelr heyday.

How was your family affected durling this period?

"e veore 2all hlding, and luckily, we Were not Ikilled,

“here did yeu hide?

e used to fimd ? Clns shens?

You didn't go in the woods?

llostly in the homes, but they would come in and swiftly cccomplish thelr
cbjective and reltreat, Cermans sort of establizhed some sort of government;

it vas a systcmatic loss of lmdependence; flrst, they said we had to surrender

any valuablaes to them, Jell, it was a wvar, so vwe'll give them valuables,
and hopefully i1t would be over. Then a ned declaraticn, 21l furs, and 2ll
Tiner furniture, amd all silver and all pots; gradually, thsy left us with
only a Tew bare necessiiies, Then all males had to work, My fathzr used
to go to werk, he would be beaten, ard come home,

That ¥ind of uork?

Any Find of work, manual, for people vho had never worked manuwally,..
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Your father must bave been about 357

No, my father was about 40,

That Hird of education did your father have?

iy mother went to the Universidy in viemnma; 7 don't know if my faiher
graduated from high school,.(gymmsiun)

During the perlod of time before the Germans put him te work, did he do
arything?

Under Russlan occupailon? Je may have had some kind of a jeb,
How d1d you occupy (your tine)?

I was golng to school, Life uas the same but it was not the same, 3Suddenly,
you lest a lot of freedom,

Do you remenber being frightened all durlng that perlod?

It was nol comfortable, Dut vhat came was awfl, in retrospect, the time
when the Russians <ero 1n contrel, wagn't as tad as we thought it vas,

¥ou were an only chlld s0 your parents shared all this wlth you?

Yes, and for some reason, havling ralsed threethildren myself, I was much
more part of the family. They used to call me
so T sort of led them into everything, ‘hen ¥we were nlding possesslons,
H“as the one Who nelped pack these Udngs, dhen the Germans came, and

the men bad to work, my father worked forxr quitc 2 while, then he developed
very severe back paln, and he couldn't work any more, Lveryone had to have
ceme sort of worklng papers, so he purchased some sort of decument which showed
that you were employed by a very important institution, and in case of ceriain
achtions, which ve called in Polish actsia (?), you were not going to be semt on
the trains to the concentration camps,

Do vou remember poople beins sent on the tralins?
Y p=0p g

The first action in our c¢ilty was Septamber 5, 10U2, and I remember the
chaos, suddenly, because the treing would eore and siand ouiside of the city.
“ihen these long trains came there, KWe knew what they were for, Some of your
Christian friends would let you knrow that they vere coming, and some of them
would help you.

You Yeres nod about 127

12 in August, and that was in Seplember, and my father arranged with a

( tian friemd, farmer, of ocurs that my mother and T would go te the farnm,
quite & lorg distance, three mlles, flve miles, am he would hide us over this
poeriod, but my father was, of course, a2 nceded employee, and he had this badge
ard he vas Free.

He thought he was safe because he had it (the tedge), but you didn't,
Also, ve had bullt some sort of a bunker; we sealed off & part of ihe base-

ment, amd I remember there was a tiep in the floor and you opcned 1t, arnd
there 7as some sorl of cablnet over it, Everybody had now architecture,
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D: In my writings T deserlibed it, Y cried every night for aboub a year, evory
night,

Y How was your mother able te mamage in terms of your uell-being?

D: e vere supporting ezch other; o became paritners. T had to be with her,
ard my mothor was very brave, and tried to help me cope with it, but to nme
the loss was just aboul the worst thing thet could happen,

Y: Did you have a speclal velationship with your father?

D: Yes, and the nipght before, he had w2 on hic knee, which he usel to do, but

[y [}

during the war, ard the last feu months, he hadn't, 4z 1fF hs haed a premonition
that it was to Lo the last time topgother, Ard that stayed with me, One
ihing, the Cermanc never let you mourn, because whatever happened next was
worse, '"he next thing e knew ve uwere throin out of our home, and I rememberp
de had to move on & glod, and the farmers and people around would just come
ard take ﬁ'fuv-_\,fth% ng . it ut asldng,  You had no control of vhat you owned, and
de werg left vlth very foil posscssions, And we vers lucky. .~ moved, my
mother and I, to & house ilth thres or four families living on ons floor,
They vwere forming a ghetto, and it was Llocked off, of 300 poople who wirere
allowed to stay in the cliy; you had to be cmployed, And s had a very gnod

friend who uas a ph\r*-*-*cian ard he obtainad =mploynent for my mothnr ¢ nl myseclf,
so wn cowld stay in the ciiy, o were alloded in two bloecks or something lilke
that,

Y: ~hat Tdnd of vork did you do?

B Ity mothe» weorked in a hospitel, And T worked in 2 public bath,

b That vas your job?

D I think carryling tater, 1T nover sav anybody being 'm'ther 'thr"r'-*', but 1t was the
idea tlat you vere employed dolng noeossary employment, “hat lested untll
March, 194%3. “hen chaocs broke out; twelve of us gathored together, and asked
our Christian friend 17 he could savs us oy halp us,

Y: ~hat Hnd of chzoz?

the
D Pecpla yunning around Yecausc they knew the noxt day/city was going to ba
o vhich means frec of Jaws,
re

ME Someonz hed let 1t be knoun that the Gormans were golng to come in and/move
all Jeis physically,

bE “xberminato,  Ivideatly there must havoe beern tranches bring dupg because thore

I 1’-{:."!‘11. that Ay,
Y: You dor's Lnow hov mamy Jeus ?
D: T heve o f=-1ling maybe 2,000, Thoy wers down to 300, In all ghettos, you did

not arly have ths vopnlat* on, the origiml population, but c-lgO) piople {rom
the villages, “'nich wiere very close by,  Durlng the war, i\, may have 5000 or
85000, ‘'he original population,and than 4n were dosn to ax‘mb 300, but e had
saveral "actio: "y but of ecourse, T dAescribed the one that afTcoted me the mosi,
the loss of my father, AL that pointy this very fine ",‘nrlut%ar led us into a
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D, con;t. hiding places, My father - we got this later, somebody came to ack
my father to intervone, somebedy clse was taken by the Germans, so
he was asked to intervene, since he was sort of safe, aml of
course, vhen he ient to intervene, they took him, And they teok him
on the train,

And this was in 19423

~

D: A weck before Rosh Hashanneh and 1t was the hottest day of the year, amd he
vent on that train; that train stocd all day long, it stood while $hey were
athering peopley,

Y Did you zee them tzke hiwr?
D: Moy ve veare 1ike five miles away, on the farmy, hiding, I never remenber right
nov being as hot, and e wers coverced with strau, dylng of thirst, but te couldn't

turn or make any Ikind of noisc, because the Farm help would hear us; they
nwould have reported us, e heand the screams, the screams were awful,

Y: lhat do you meoan, the screams?

BY The screams of the childyen belng gathersd,

Y: Tut you teold me you vere Tlve miles away?

D: You could hear the sercans, Maybe 1t vvas three miles, You could hear thr

sheoting,
Y: And this vas just matherlng poople up for the trdlm

D: Gathering mp the people for the traln, poople knew where they were golng, preople
vere reslstant, They would tale a2 child and throw it against the telephone
pole; amd ithe mother would be watchlng, and the laments ~fere just auful,

Amd weo told later that there e murders, Iy Tather alvways sald that he vould
never g0 to the crematory alive, Some pecple Jumped out of the tralng tha

wers o versions: that he suffocated, and somebody told me that he huns himself,
Iater on, they cane to releasc them and he vas dead, Now, I don't kuox hich

is trus,

¥ li= wvas being released because ho was doing this important work?
Dut he had z8id they swould never falke Lim alive?
D: The trains pulled avay, and a5 far as T know from scmebody ...
I e ¥
Y: obseTVerS. W
D: There Were no observers because everybody went to the cremateriugp, but peopls

used to Jump out of the txains, and occasiomtlly, somebody would survive,

en vageon had an 35 man with a machine gun, Gven though it was very diffleult
+0 Jjump, but thoy would break a board and Jump, and a numbor wero k11led,

Of the fru vho Jumped, cccasiomally orne vould survive, The train vas golng fast
and poople may have been shot ir the log or arm, so thls was the report of

the death o my Tather,

Y .hat vas your mother's rcaction?
UE Twen my mother amd I retw nold Y2 the clty, how does one feel uvhen one loses a

rar~nt? 1 thought it wasz the worst thing that happsnred to me, and enly to me,
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D-cont, ¢r some Irind of an edifice bullt in a big garden, out of the clity,

o3

[

and we took a bucket of water, and some clothes with us, and we

vent o that third floor, and he locked us [rom the outside. and
vas fraszing. March in Foland - arch hers compared is very mlld,
Aand we almost froze, [y mothar amd I and 10 other people, & Triend

of ring, ard her mothery at this point, nobody had a N1 family
either single puople, or two prople left in a family, e had ;30110
through all kivwds of cxtermineiion giocwsw over thoereo, “hi

cne of my times <hen T 5311l get goose pimples Jhen I tnink 1%,
"ne sereans ore right under our windoi, 4he screams oF the pC:Oplst

not wanting to go, people being shot when they voddn® b MOVo
This vas into the trains?
tioy, thls iias into the diiches,

They dug ditches amd :icr= {oreing prople, they uay they did in INiev amd

-4

Batiars ~ the same Kind,.. you tierc saved Trom that

e could not leave berausc tia ore locked inside that barn, 10 orne could see us
bt e haﬂ nothing to =at, a 1itt1r~ bit of watecr, and this iicnt on for two days,
weryone vas hiding, which 1s vhy 1t fook zo long, but they gathered overybady,
and in th evening of the :econd day, they camz to our placs, and they

becausne -I:hry knev shere people would be hiding, They

tricd to break the door, they couldn't do it, but I think mach of us :Lnd every
srcond.,

-
|

The feay that vyou had is etili «ith vou,
J

Tt is sti11 Ath ma, I vas thirteen, And my nother uwas with me, And we
trying to think what to do, and thoy came up Lo the door, they were very

vy clovery, brought soms vax ard rent back to make an impression, and the
next morrdng brought a lockamith «with them, amd they had dogs with them. They
Ttnew thearn dere people hldlng there, God forbld somebedy didn®t get killed,

‘e ween plamning, vhat cculd wc do? Tle our clothes togethor in knots and Jump
out from the 3n»d silory vindow, but they laft a watchman, Any kind of planning
dldn's help, o vere sure thet was thec end., The next afternocn, vie heard

the door open and vie sald y in the mraminile, we heard
the man say, Come rla' ny, it vas the man vho let us ing it's gquiet nov, Zverybody
has bern Idlled, And run whersz the =yes {ake you., I have 1o leave becausc

I will be Idilled with you, and we came do n amd stf::tc:i toe run,

0id all 12 of you siay togcthor or «id you separatie?

"o ran together; we ran for abont a fev *iles, and suddenly 3 young 55 man with
& -|u.'ﬂ'bf rn approached usy and ho sz2id (I'm walting for you) and follow me, 1°11
talze you t¢ the station and we'll shoot J,cm in the morning, 20 o turhed around
and folloied him becausc he had the gun, o valksd a fo steps and hs turned
arourd and hc 58id, Zive me your money, Dvorybedy always had somethlng, money
hiddaony T nad mongy in a dowrnm vest, 50 the vislible things, and he lct us go.
amd it sas snovlng, and 1% vwas a boantiiwl cvening, and that uas the last tlme

I left ny city. o zani sic had to tiptec throush the village; e kne that
that the villagers .ere worse than the Ucrmans because of the antl-Jemitism,

Thilsz was the Uiraine? or Zoland?

PEMHIAR! The Ukrainian part of Polanl, Just as uo
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a  slack (?) pulls up With the cmblems on it, one has a bayonst, one has
a gun, lalt, they stop ard they come down, 4We would rather be killed Uy the
Garmans because the Germans would shoot, but they had other forms of torture,
I was the first one, walking with a frierd of mine, and they told us 4o undrass.
5o I had to undress, to my slip and barefoot, undles no, it was below zero,
And then everybody clse, they scarched the elothes, ard fournd what they fournd,
and then they let us get dressed, and then they would taks us to be shot, 3o
ve started begging with them, pleading with them, crying, armd after they had
deternined that thsy had gotten everything, they let us go. 7They lect us go,
we go for another tWenty miles, no, three or four miles, again, and another
group, they tortured us, They could have shot us, but they didn't, But at
that polnt 1t was worse than belng shot, And this went on thres or four times,
And fimally, I remember my mother said, let's run...

Vere you on & maln road?
A main reoad, but Just village roads, «here ome connects to the other,
“here wers you heading?

There was 2 ghetto in tha city named Rohokin (?), I can't remember the mileage,
25 lometers, And we got there, Ve arrived early in the morning, and of
course, the ghetto vas always surrounded with wire, and luckily we fourd gplace
wa smuggled into the ghetto, There was a very cystematlc googxa]_:hiva'f climina -
tien of the ghettoes, And the Germans knew that if any Jovs survived, they
would get into the next ghetto. Newxt month, or next week, they vwould liguidate
that ghetto, And until that was all,

Didn't you feel that goling to 2 ghetto was unsafe?

There was no place that was safe, At lezst you were with Jews. Anywhers else
all your nelghbors were so hostile, Thers was no other place to go,

You talked about some Folish people...

Yes, there Were 1rdividuals, but at this point, nobody zould help us in our
own city any more, Just remember to help a Jew was almost worth your life,
But I can understand why people didn't help, but most most of them helped to
kill us, If they had stayed neutral, thousands of Jews would have survived,
I'm not ta-lr"ll'"’ about other countries, I don't know, but where I came from,
DPCILI:..:H.: thr Germeans could have never never accomplished the ohjectives ulthout
the help of the mtives. VYhen ve came to that ghette, thers Was somebody there
ie knew, and they took us in, Apain, about Z0 people lived in one room.

And. my mother and T staysd in that Loom, and we stayed in that room for a
week, I think, and we had 2 little KT cot 1n the back, and half a nigi"t she
would sleep ard T would sit, and thrn. other half a night I would sleep and she
would sit. OF course, we had what was on us, ard it was very cold,

vl

Eov could you survive the weather?
the
It was a miracle. How I survived later when I left 1n the foresi infone dress
You rad no ecoat, no blankets...
Just what I had on,

Did you cover yourssli...
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Dec, ith leaves, when I vas in the forest. And that cxpeorlence vwas one of the
torst, But we verc fortumte, e stlll had an aunt, my mother had a cousin,
ived in another city, where the ghetto was =till there., And the con-

who 1
ditions vwere still & 1iitle Bit belter,
Y: ., 30 you kept moving east?  Southeast?
D e rmpt moving, not necessatly eczst, I would rezlly have to have a map,
Tt was like going From Hew Yoxk to Philadelphia, to ' ilminglon, to Baltimore.
1he re my aunt's sitvation was still fairly good, and we zot in touch with

them, There vere ways, notzunrr' legally, but illegally, ashk somebody was going
for poitatoes, or transport somrmﬁ_r;r-, T don"t know how it was done, bui what
she mareged to send 2 Cerman Tor us, and a Cerman came 1nto the ghetto,

amd took us to her city,

Y: The German vas & friend of hers?
D: ¥o, the Cerman Jas well paid, dut she vas very very wealthy, and she still

had many of her possessions, She bribed him, he could have kllled usy taken
the moacy and killed us, but he didn't, He stuffed us in potaio sack ar

put hay over us, as i’ he Vere transporting something to i
Hovi in it wias paradise, [y mother ard T had the bedroom,
we had clothes, and = teth, arnd the firs meal in about 2 weeks, a varm meal,
and Lt was llke Delng *egwmﬂed. lﬂﬁ ngs don't last forrver, hut at that
time, 1t Was very good., I beling the youngest, and, in those days, not looking
.aerrd_uic, very falr, blus-eyed, ?'rl t,.\,y decided that I was the one to be saved,

they wanted to send me to a convent, and my aunt, vho came from a very

vealthy family, and kned everybody, they were very infiunential before the

vaxr, &2 they hed the nun come, ani vanted me 0 2 convent, DBut I was & very
stubborn little Idd, and I refussd, I had this,..

Y: fould you not think that ithls as a chance Lo save yourself?

D; o, I would nct leave my mother, even though as a child T vas not dependent

on her because she used to @& to these resorts in the sunmer, and T vas
waised vith 2 mid, T uvas never a depeni=nt child, T was closer to my
father, but yet, I Felt at that pelnt, I was not golnz to leave her,

<

o

Il das your duty.

D; I don't know, consclously, how I ratioralized that, bub I refused and that upsa-t
everybody, Ybut they éid Dbedily force me, then they decided they would purchase
Aryan papers for.me, I you get an Axyan blrth certificate anl 2 school certi-
ficate, perhaps I vould pass on the Aryan side, and elther be laken to Germany
e work in the Tactorlas, end again T refused, Then the thirxd time vasz that I
vould be sent te ancther physicen my cunt knew, and live in another clty,amd
I would thelr mald, or governoess .F‘o: the children or until the war vas over,
But I was jusi as stubborn the third time¢, HNeamihile, they would not let me
g0 out, =ven in the ghetto, because this was a nev city, and they didn't want
anyhody to recogrige me, I Was cooped uwp in a room, talking, and not doing
dhat 2all the adults were planning for me. They decided that the only othcr vay-
my aunt had & gon who '.:a:a Ul—years—-old, but he was brilliant, He worked with
the Germans and had all these commectlons, He was the one vho had this Germazn
sent for me, They d oc:L!’o. thers vas a labor camp, which #as nol far, and that
vould ke a very good place, If the ghettoss viere axtsrminated, in the labor
camps you vers neoded, Agﬂ*n, they paid a lot of mongy amnd they sent my nothex
and me tec the labor camp, e arrived thern in the morning, and the labor

)
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D, con't, commarder looked 2t us, and he dida't know vhether to shoot us or not.

He told us, he'd save our 1ife and send us back to tha ghetto, because my
mother was toc old, she was forty, anmd I uas too young, I was thirtszen,
‘e begged and pleaded, and told him, we'd do anything, He 1ot ua out to

work for that day, amd they beat us '-n.J:z ta werae working, and we didn't

have any feod all, day, of course, Ard the next morninb-, they senl us Teck

to the ghetto., And We knew that the shetto was just about to be liquldated,

so my cousin agdin arranged with the Germans to sned Just his mether, and

she was accepted &3 vorking in the yard for the cormander of the camp. Chortly,
she came “or me and took me with her, e lived in the camp, and T used to
build reads; T would carry stones, and would hammer the stones, and then I
vould pour t.m: tar on them; the mr burned the eyes terribly, Iverything

wag done manually becausc labor was cheap, aml we Here already the emvy of

the people in the shetto because perhaps

you might have been saved

There vas haxdly amy Tood, tut maybe us siould Ilive, Iy nother and another
aunt staysd in the ghetto, and &gain, my auni had pald guite a lot of mongy
to a Christian faplly, whose house was backed up to the ghetto that when

the action came, they would be able to hide in the attic there, with ancther
cousin, There iierae about six of us there, "The action came, and my mother,
ard aunt, and cousin hid in the atbtic, =0l another cousin was capiured, but
ha jumped cut of & train, and he was shot in his leg, and he somehoi got over
to us, we brought him on 2 sled or a wagon, anl his legs vere bleedingg I
vemember the clots of blood, amd Tor the time belng, things were fine. After
a 1ittle while, the Christdan frziend told my mother and my aunt that they
had %o leave, that they could nob stey there any longer., And my mother and
my aunt left, and went into ihe fislds. It was springtime, ey 1943, and

the 1oins werc pouring and they had no food for several days, they stayed

<

Y l:l

in the finlds, I did recceive a noke from my mother, I don't knor how, saying
for me 40 have couraze, you wlll survive, and it's casy for me to dic, knowing
that you will survive, You must remember to tell the world. These are the
vords which most of Lhe survivors echo, that thelr parent or some ¢lder person
had zaid to thenm. You must Flght, you must live, and you must tell what has
happened to the Jeiss As my mother and my aunt, some of the farmers saw the
vhoat moving, and called the Cermans, and they were shot in the forest, in
May, of '43, And I was left with my aunt and two cousins.

Did you know agont his?
Yes, T knew because o J unt.,. I thinlk they crc not shot immediately; T think
they wWere taker into some prison because my aunt cven tried to plead and bribe,

ard nothing helped. e were in that laber camp, That lasted until May uwntll
July, and July 29, 1943, we heand shots, and we kuew thet was the end of the
camp., And fortumately, we wWore nou far from the forest and ve maraged 10
run into it,

There wias not a Tence around this labor camp?

Yo, becausc at that time, my aunt managed for us to oo working Tor this
commender, e were not in the fenced in area, B aie s d i 8450w B0 the laber
camp, men were hung by thelr fect, because they Aldn't work fast, ;v'rl othar
Horrible atrocities commited to ihese people and left [or others to see avery
day as an cxample,

The labor camp, the workers vere Polish, not nscessarily. Jeviish?



<

o incinerator, there? Just a lahor camp?

“vom thers, onse you cowldn't work any more, you were cithor shos, or sont
soneithers, or you couldr't work “ast enough,

‘hat vas the mame of the camp? That's 211 right. .Jhat werc the kKinds of things
they did at campy
Build rcads beturen Gerro any dﬁi Pussi L, and and 1% was a Pollsnh part,

I guess whon lhe rozd wes bulli, that's when they shet cveryboedy,

La Ia*‘ aiay into the f c-rr.-s;-t, oy aunt ,Hw"a., sha had ¢one 80N...Who was a
11

brilllant bey...

This vas your mother's sister?

She nas my grandmother’s half sister; she vas close to my mother, like a sister,

Age-ilie, she Was, ..

;’he was my mother's age, %0, maybe a yeer or tio younger, bhut her son ies
& few months older than T and he vas the one vho did nost of the negotiating
with the Germens, through large sums of money, and he,unortunately, was shot
to death, ‘hen she lost him, she ecame into the woods with vs, but she nhad

no 111 o live

o will, she siould Just sit ard just cry, cne of the most pathetic things to
see, OGhe had lost ner hushard, and her son was an urusual boy,

Te osurvived in the uoodsy we lived on berries, on nuts, we got wet, we got
(]_13’,

iere you able bo bulld sheliers for yourselves ?

In the swintertime; tie vere Killing ifice, that vas the occupation;

Jas thore any place to athe? a sctream? drinking water?

o, T don's know. In the vintertime, nelited ice. ome little streamy raybe,
T don't remember,

Did yeu learn how to live off the lamd?

You couldn’t live off thc land, becausc you had to move, anytime you 1it a
Tire, tl._ dops, and the Ukwalnians and the Crmens camsz a®™ter you, S0 you

became nomadic people,
You viere in the southeasternpart of Foland?

‘hat is now thoe Ukraine part of QNussla; before 1939 1t was Poland, and before
the firgt siorld var, it vac tustria, hen my mother was born 4 the same land,
it vas Austria-Hunmery, PBut prssently it .ic the Ulralnian part of Russia,
thera ig a 1iltle fertile lard, mostly populdated by peesants, but it is sort
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zon t, of a2 breadbasket; most 07 fhe Turopean countries are forever fighiing

ovoer Lty pess through bebdween Germany and Kussia, 12¢ In the forest was...
ssuvsectrsissnnsnases I don't know how T survived, I don't know how zny one

curvivad,

How did you sleep?

Glght on ths groued. ...

Did you aever have fear of the ardmals?

I had such a Tear of the Ukrainians and the CGermans that animals wore your
Tends, T had no fear,

Nid you have anycne wlth you wWho actnd as a gward?

T had a cousin «ho wag seven years older than I; hox brother and I, and ay aunt,
Iy awnt, vhile we were sitting, heard the shots, and we started rumning, e
never kasd dhere vo wore wanning, and my aunt was killed, 1 thowht that 1 vas
Idlled becausc bullset orazed oy e2vw and the impact threv ms to the

raTthy, =nd T thought that T was dead, The amasing thing, I remcuber @y
thought very clearly, saying, Godl Jhy? I'm so young., And suldenly heing
religlous, I thought I vas dylng, or dsad alrzedy, and suddenly this need of
Cod, "hy? I'm so yourg, 13, and I'm dead already. After a Tovw rdnutes,

T reallzsed thet T was rob dead amd T got upy amd T decided that 1t wWas vorse
than being dead beecauss T thought that I was the only one uvho had survived,

T your Zanilly?

“he whole thingg at thls point, anybody was fammily; my aurt vas killed, ard
she was rellsved of hor misery. She had nothing to live Ter anymore, Zut

ny cousin, ancther aunt's davghicr, and her Lrether survived, Those ho
survived started valking ard you heard people vallkins in the leaves, beczuse
in thes forest, you can't sce very well, e suzally occcupisd the thickest part
of the Torest beecause ve didn't want 10 be spotted, 350 agaln, we sort of
amled together, her brother who uas 18, I was the youngest, 14, and she was
19, .e Touwnd other people, and there #would bs a mar there, and usually

they would scavenge, potatees, amd brlng tack, I they did you would ezt

and 17 ihey didn'%, you wouldn't., "hat lasted until the winter mme, Axd
that vas paradise nexti to the vinter, Jhen the winter came, there vas nething
to eat in the forest,

This was the vinter of 19475, .hen vinter came thoere was po way of [Mnding food.

You teors so much more miscratls; e did wudld ke a2 burker, bul we couldn't
stay toos long. .herover e moved, e would dlg somethlng, But when iie weuld
dlg something, it wrould be very small fox ve had no utensils, no tools, hen
vou wiant to sleep, there was only room for you to lie on your side, ISlx or
cirht or ton people, you couldht turn arowx, Cnce the position, you dozed
of" thls «aas Lhe positlon you slepl on the ccld frozen ground, Jome leaves
covering,. About Februery of that year, I developed 105 temperature,
most people died, I don't knov hou I did not dic. The only thing I had +as
ard I guess a healthy body befors, T uwas delerious
for guite 2 vhile, The temperature subsided after tWo wWeells or 50,

These people took care of you?

1zis omage L simmas  wemmes g = m e eee— g e e = - —
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Just somepody to ~lva me soma lce, malted 1oe,
- )

After severel eehs, T tried to cvavrl out of that bunker, and alk, I had
groun cartilace under my hnces amd my lepo would not cOsm. up, A3 T lost
211 my hair from that, completely bald, And I couldh’h walk, T callpd,
Lucliily, it was teoe cold Ter then/for us at that time because T could nod
Lo coma
have made it,

hv didn't you suffer Trostbito? crxposure from cold?
T Jhad TO.:'b‘t‘ tten toes,
"he hodies sierve very close o cach other,

about during the daytime?

In the daytine, sthen moved, e would bulld & Mre and .4, T had no shoes,
I may hava hed them vhen T ran, but T didn'+t have them then, Dut I curvived,

Did all the people in that 1itils group?

One day, after I was better, they came after us again, but they didn't ctart
shooting beecause they sigre afraid goming into the forest., There vWere some
pvarts of the forest beeause of the Russians (?).  The Cormans vould never
enter the forest -fithout the dog;s. e ireerianaaen

Az you heard them shooting, the men had Tolloved somebedy a fovw Yilomsters,
you would start fo run; nebody uodﬂd run togetner, it was an instinet. You
A1dn't %ocw where you wi-re running,

Hov 'bout elimbineg trees? Hiding Srom them?

That's only for animels, not for people, hat Y did - to Jump into & very
small pond, through the ice, into the w2 *r__, and C;Iﬂul)/c« wranch that sias lyinge
or: the ic-, and covered mysel® up/ The rater uas quite cold. After *h

up to my noelk,
shootlng, T heard thenm come up to the pord, and T heard the Ukraintan saying
to the Cormang T thint T see someone in the vater, e das very anxious, But
the Corman sald, It is too cold, If there is somebody we'll get them the nexi
tlme, Jhen he s2ld, T think T see somebody, that vas anctheor time that it
Gas my end,  And 'tl"r::l they left, I igited o while, You uaited to be surc
thzy had departed, amd T pot out o7 the vatsr. 0f course, I immedlatcly becanc

icep T had nothing to change Lrto, and ran back imbo Lhe bunker, Thore vasz
anoth o ittle gird, I don't know vho she belongad %o, and®rnother bigger girl,
sihe siasn't a2l thexre .-‘hD us>l to f2le care of the little girl, The J13%tic
,T.'.rl ras 2 Jowish pirl, but she could eonly lalk Ulrainian, no Jew. Ukrainian

way & melive language; oither you used Jewish or Peolish becazuse tho child must
have bern hidden by Uloalnlans, and she das four yoars old, And she =2id to
me, in Uoeindan, I sav them amd T '.id., in the 1ittle hol ", it wvas dark in
therr, Tho instinet of & Touwr-yeaur-o0ld to nov to hide Mo, I denr't kno
npat happened Lo thet child, ot 1t made such zn ﬁmp;-.-ssion on me, L Tas
elready mature, 1% almost 14, but 2 Tour—-year-cld having the instines, of
roalizing thaet lhe Germans andl Ukreindians were comipg to Kill her and sha hid
at this timc, they #illed my m=le cousin, 19 yoar-old boy,nis rame vac Cr‘-;-:.';ig:(
The Ukralnlans got to lhem and they siere nel happy wwith this Tillin

thoy cut o hs cars, cult hic -yes out; cut hic tongue out, and thr.3 1__ L
nts hody, ‘'his was the ‘ype of IH1ling, wot barbaric, not juct killing, a
1%~yra~-cld boy, tiying te hid live; they did not kncw him perscenally,

m
b
B
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because they hated Jows, At the emd, ny

JLLL,L, becaise he wasg Jewlsh,
SUT™ v_md Sha u.nd I were liberated,

cousin, his slster, Lorna
he had Deen hiding with you?
o vcre together most of the iime, Thore viers times vhen ve siore scparated.

the vz alder?

She was seven yoars old, There vere iimzs vhen she wn avay from ma; T

nekt an asset, T vias yourger, I ies probalily; sonctimes,
she wowld leave me, bocause ";'l; as the survival, but ve memaged to get
tack amd “orth bot,r\ ther, and Ve ilare f_:_bzxatr:u togethor. ‘Jhen ve warn

liberated, it vas osumner; the ;_vin._; sltuation was betler amln, because
&t least our clothes vere dry and tic wers not freezing,

And it sias casier 4o get things o cat..,
duch,  Our strongth ras rumming out, toc heoecanze it was 30 much longer

Tl as 1o,

This was 290, ard I vould lie and hear the plancs come, and I would prey
that they vould thror the Lombs for & gqulck anl casy ending imtoai of
belng tortured, or slaughteved Mile my cousin, ¢ heard shots, amd e iors

told that they vera coning afles sy iike belore, 2rd the bullets siere just
flying all over, and e vere ducking ‘:117 ov__, a*ﬂ suds m*ﬂo e heard the

Tussian solddicrs, sayling Come out; we vere belng liberaied. Dut e dldn't
rezlize, o didn’ knov vhere the wax k-.a.d, We d_cln".; fnoi what was golng
on, Jo dddn't huow.,.,
You had no ldca atl amy tine?

theught that 1% vas the end, &nd here we vwore, belng freed. In Zfact,

~c:*1r-- ¢f the proople di=d while belng freed, bebicen the crossfire of the
Cermans and the Ruscians,

The Germans uern roiTeating at thet time,

+hen T wag liberatnd, prople wers stlll dying athuschwitz becausc T was 1iberated
cxactly to the day, July 27, 194, T irant info the forest on July ?r, 103,

The erematorivm torked For ano’ch-r gear until J-GL}, 1945, Dut I didn't realize
that vither, ue didn't knou, 551ans iﬁdn T t=2li us ihat vas gelng on,

They imme iately established -.JL,IJ(JO:L..’ amd Iitchens; they gave us {ood, amd

Gont o schicol o woeks labory

;ith whon did you live?

I lived infe same city with this cousin for a while, Chenslamic¢? ., amd her
Tamily had cwnped large property and we got a room ,

You went tack to the property that ithey had ouncd?

Ard we had 2 room there, she ard T ard another glrl whe had survived wilth
There are a [ev things that are very important that T nave forgotten bLo gell Folls
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Dycen'ts My mother's farily, most of my mother's femily,lived in a clty callad
Stelmslov (7), & large ¢ity, population 40-30,000, 40 Kllometers away {rom
tere, The Fusstans have changed the name now, 7 had an ugele who
1ived theys who came from jarsay - L'm not sure 17 he was 2 psycholegist or =
psychdatrist — but I koow that he worked with disturbed children, ' hen the
Germans came, they had run away from warsaw {o Sianislav to that city, ard
the Germans had a proclamation that all the intelligentsia, Intclleocetuals,
uers to report to the market place bectuse they would gai the better jobs,

Thern We g

]

4

They 4xicked vs in 4ith 211 Hinds of things like this,
Y: But by that Llime,..
o to, that vdas in the beginning, about a wHeerk after they came, tWo weels,

s0, hoping to zet some sort of job to support hls family, my uncle reported
there with 4,000 othexr intellectuals, doctors, professors, laiyers. Thay
transportsd them to a place siherr they had surrounded, amd in the place
they had on the {loor, cr on tha stresit, barhed wire, malls, broken glass,
any kind of object rvhich ls= polinted, and they made thesc psople undress
and run over that, back and forth, back and forth, 'Those «ho ccouldn't
run “er~ shot, Those who didn't die there weres taken afier a half hour o
mmninge inko the ditch, And this ‘ras the intreduction fe the Germane e

£
\

pil Houw Aid you hear about +his?
D In the beginning, people in the night would come Yack; thers was commurication;
it vas aot legal,., 1t was nmot Tull, Tut 1t wasm,
Y: There must have beon terribdle Teaxr that vas gensrated,
o
D: Hverything vas gradual, ard there vas aleays maybe that was once, 2nd they

von't do it again, te teach us 2 lesson, They must have psychologlsts working
on that syztem, becauses 1% vas o very gredwsl, insidicus uay of iatimide ting,
By the time thoy killed, very Fev people could rebol. “hey hadn't eatan,

they hadn't slapt; they'd been tortured, intimidated. It is amzing that
thaie was as much resistance as there vas, from what I have r-=d lately,

in 21l the camps, and the provocation pouring out of the reslstancs, which
vas net knowun belfore,

<

You menticned that Pellch people did help you in your toun,

Dz They helped my mcther obtain a job; the job didn'ti pay but it vas a vay of
staying alive,
M You said there were people stho rdsked thelr own lives, . hat retio of the

pepulation #id this?

D1 Very small,

Y The Ukrainians vere the worst, but the Polish ...
N1 Unfortunately, anti-vemitism is sort of the basis, or was the basis, T don't

know what it is todzy, of the church teschlnzs, and “hen the chlldren «orc
very ilttle, they were taught that the Jous illed Christ, Christ-killers,

8rilled into them, amd 1t was lilke 1% vas almost & geood dred teo 11l & Jew,
. a i 2
Y Did you have any opporturdty, when you wors groving up, 1o have lollsh/

Christlans as your frierds?
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Le Yes, I remombar in Polamd ve used te have a Flrst hraakfa,z, and
a second breakfast, You would sat your brcakfast home, and then you would
promeradn in scheool, and you would sit and cat some sort of L.’r,tln tea (?)
sandwich, and T rrmember prememading with a very prominent girl, very proud
1t sha was promemading with me, And another {jirl cams over and said, why
are you soclalizing with hex? Che's Jewish, I didn't think that T was any
different. T alsc remember going to my grandmother's farm once and having
somz sort of vhite beads, and another 1little girl, peazant girl, -.Jho they
brought over to play with me so T would have company, so I wouldn't be there
alone, ard she said to me, Oh, they're made from dead Jews' itceth. Things
like this,,..I was cxposed to very little anti-s crni-bi.dm. This was a minpimum,
because T didn't live in a2 ghetto, and We vwere like assimilated,

Y: The Jews in your cemmunity §id mingle with Christlans? It vasn't completely

SRETne ted?

Dy Ch defirditely (mingle)

Yi ‘rre there many Jovws lived 1n your town?
I: T must say that my parents glven many possesslons, with what the Russlans
™

hed taken avay, there tiere still certain things hldden, and they haed glven
guite 2 Tou pogsnssions to one farmer to hide, ard after the war, I came

back and tock him to court - at the age of 1L - to a court of his peers, which
T didn't vealize, 4Apd he dented having taken anything into hiding. 3ut

I 4id ge beclh to one lady uwho was a schoolteacher and she roturned to me
threc ar Tour ltems which my mother had placed with her, To this day, I

have one piece of material sihich I had made into a sult Immediately when I
cane to the United States, which 13 like the only physiecal llnk beticen me
and my parents and my past, my Lome, my city, nething elsc that I can put my
fingers on,

Y: hen your father had glven these things to this farmer, he never gave back
amything?

D Gf course, they were shocked. .hat arc you deing living? You are supposed
to be dead. He demled 1t,

Y: Did you go tack to your home?

D: Yos, T went back, yes, onee, And thers vere very fow that ¢ laft, three

or four Jewish people, amd thny were all lsaving. t}obod
irst of all, fear, tocc. Zome poople weni back to other ¢
muercd, survived, and they vere mirdersd,

But to this day I dream at night that I #want te go back. I know there 1s nothing
for me back thare; thers isn't oven a cometery, I don't even have anybody

buried there, a2nd yet, before I die, I wculd love 6 see 1t again.

WY
Was woing to stay,
1tins, amnl vex

R
i1+
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Y: T hope you have a chance,

D: T would ba murderod. I would be scarsed 1o g0,

Y: Hot nou.
D ¥es, The fear iz in me. “Tould they still be in the peasant-iyps meniality?
Y Jhat was your course immediately afiter the wax?
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Y The var uas still going on? You otlll had 2 1ot of educatlorn to cateh up?
you weren't Mificen,
D Tnmediately, the Russians ecstablished schools :.1 I vas living in that onec
single woom, vating in a public kitehan, not oimng a vatch cr a cloeck, neves

late Tor achool ons day, had to walk quite a distanr:\:., T had clcthes -’:‘.lv‘u:.L,.y,
nad a pair of shoos, and somsthing oo my back, and ne books, of course, because
it vas still ‘:h-' Tront; we heard sheollng not far, and ITromemboo, of course,

all the toachers vere Mussians; nod they came {rom Russia, so ageln, it vas

a different language; it s the thimd time in my lifa vhich everythins was
taught in a different languags, I =ztariad in Polish, tvent inte Yiddish, oou

it vas Nuostian, nvery 5*_1‘,jr:.ct,g;co._,_n_phy, history

g Did you have any trouble with that?

D: T had trouble with writing because we had no books, The teacher would lecture,
ard you had to study, ard “hatever she sald, you had to writs 1t, T cause you
had no books, I remember ny vrist hurting me so badly, maybe because T had
nrite, T Fipished that year in school, I remember we had to take cxams; they
gavae g & menth to study for emams and anything you had studied wp that stape
in your 13¥s - T had sldpped a2 lot -

Y You uaye rgaponsible for

¢ put you through (as much)j the Russian
L

don't think any ind of Beards
UE2 {10u3),

her
atiomal system as toush 1n 104

Y: s there other people in your cirecwmctancs in your school?

D: T 37 1 ves the only Jevish Ild or if there tias somsbaly clze;
LI 8] I do zemember polng ko schoel, and I 4o romember belns in
that clty ard vwhen school was over T decidad T had to leave, That's ihen T
ant to my oun eity, end Tound that there weru ne Jevs there, so

T You vent alone?  Uu rent tlth your cousim

D: T went ith my cousin, once, ard then I vent ""onc. Then I vent o anothar

Tittle city ~hore thore cas & friend of my fether's cho surrived, I dida't
Ine: hinm and he cort of like adoptod me, And he had & son, and I stayed (ith
them Jor threc menths, and then Mussia declarsd that anyone vhe wasg a Polish
citicer can loave Poland now, Iy ratiomality as T

was not born under the Russilan (rule) so the borders have moved, 2 21 beran
loadinT i:)*_o the trein ;md L.gl n, at least we had ne Qestapo sitting on the
train, ut ihe treins had ne locomotlve haezuse thore vas a uary golng on,

{0 thoy o ’n_.f'_‘! hool up & loconotlve, and push you for tienty miles, or Z1lty
miles, then drop you threre Tor a vgek, Jo I dor'< 'mo: ho lopg it took us,
and e Aldn't kno. here te verec golng to bo,

h ‘hat was your raason “or leaving lussia? Joren't you frightened cbeut golngs
inte an aro@y .. the tar ceg 117 moing on?

D hore 25 N0 TeES0N,... by thet tims, it uas a year later, 1945, The sar
ias over, call of 1845, and no Jou uas golng to stay in that lamd; to us, it
.as Fola ri, ard cgoverad ith our tleod, u,.yb-_. inmvalids ard people in thelr
80's lelt, and many of the Polish people 1aTth, non-Jeus, “hey,teo, wanted

0 Dbe in Poland, but we ent to oland only az & vehdele to get cut of rPeland,

e Nid you no. that you could get oub of Foland?
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'J_'OL: noped, Dub you knei nothing, Once te got to Polamd, they dumped us
n Salasia,uhich us rﬂ to De German, noi it became Peoland , and stuck us on
come Gexman famm anl ve stayed there For the winter. .o had no vay of

sotiing out, But ones the snow melied, the flrst .ajy I could gst out, I

l"‘:+ Tor P L‘u‘.a, a 1')5.{_,‘- C“_ﬁ:)r Hith ?Tlai'n.f Je&is, }I]L L-h s w il oF "‘J hc.d ‘;._,E!.Ll_,,'“ a
Tdbouesin '

+&5 the joint distribution therc?

1% was nelpad By EBriccha (7), Israelic, it was 211 done illerslly, tD siuzszle

them up from Poland to the DT camps in Cermaiy, -:rom the DP camp to PeElestine,
Al evorybedy onded up in Cypress, .=1r<1 that was the way T was poing, That

b

Jas already o very healthy and happy nart of my 1ife, compa-cd to uhat I
had gone throwh

Tou had had soms Klnd of Zionist backmround in your rarly 1iTe, so it

soundnd 1ike 2 logical path for you to take., .rat deiermined/you to come

+o thiszs country? that

Twas onmy tiay., I vas ina DP camp ard not siell, tapeovorms and & tad hox

T had rheumailc hrarh lever as a child, T was supposed 1o have heen a sickly
echild, ‘but what I have lived through, 1t 1s amacing, 7T had vrititen a lcttior;
I Tmnew somebody who was goins o the U,4. amd T urots a letter.

Did you wanb o come t¢ the Urdted Siates?

just vanted Tamily, more than anythlng else, I vas lcokl T Tamlly.
T wrote a letter and pgave 1% to this friend, amrd said, put 'It .'LJ..T,u any kind

of a Jewish paper; thls i3 my rmame, this is vhere I'm from; I've survived
. T o

ard *his is ~here T thinlt +hat I have an uncls, bub T imsn'i sure.

I didn't IfFD‘.: his mn where be 1ived, They put thet into the Jeuish
e spaper in Wess ‘fo'_*.:, (.,ni not my uncle fromPhiladelphia, but & distant
cousin of :'g,r parents, my mother's malden rame was the same as her marrled
nan~ because my grefathers wore brothersy this sas another brother's grand-
son za thaet nanme, and he got in ftouch with my uncle here, and Z got a letisr
and they sent me the papers,

And that's hoi you came to this countxy.

T vould mave gcne Lo Isical, Aml 1V was not easy, United States did not
i o
want Lo lel me in,

reren't you in the First group af pecple who came?

One of the Ffirst; they insisted that you had to have certaln regulations, anl
bring in Gormerny 2t a c'“r“';a‘..n time, T rencmber one time belng so uwpset be-
gaunn I covldn't come, ard at that point, I couldn't go back, I sat in the
’)m.nrican consulate four days straight cryling, and they :aic}, te"re gorry out
e can't let you, but I zaid, I have no place to go; thers s no place in

this e.O]‘_"'ld I can go.

30 what mads them changs vaa
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I guess
You came to this country in what yoarft

Yovembor, 1947,
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: In my fourth lenguas: as &
lebrer in Detiaen, and Geman;
ry the Tirst
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You cama to this country, amd wont Lo what eity?
1 came to Wilmingbon,

"hy 2id wou come to ilmington?

Secause T hed on unele and an avidawvii, and bie sent the pepers that he nouwld

ropsensible Tor mey my uneles bos in llmingtorn,

Jacob ¥rass (Ivaus)? He oroie that he vould be zefnsidble that I would wot
o oa bumden, ; tut a2t the @ time, even vith all thig |, he hae

to declars hiz btulldlogs ard all this, they still h’O‘..L:'-_cl not l-:?z bats 1r
So you cams tc .iilmington, and you had & lot of schocling to meke up?
I vent to dilmington Yigh 3cheol for a year z2md a half, and then I greduaicd,
Jonmpa e the s2ucet) on,
t was much easlor here; 2vsrything vas

T
my experiences ~ T vas naver a tmnag
And

I didn't belong, Unfortunately,
a ¢hild, and I wag a2 woman,

Te
a weman **fx 2 tragie pact, and T ’c'r_md that was normal for the

s

vl
f'“
G

ags group immaturity, the j:~ grling; wag the teachs r s p=t, ta-

cause T uas serd ard T studied; I wanted to0 pet throush, and T sianted <o

graduate, 1t was something to take very sericusly; fo mth of the

ds, it also ias older. I wes 18 when I came, and when I graduated
e

—i

ck

years oldew., T couldn't date anybody in high <cnocﬂ:

Sy
wag 2 .
S0 it vas another trauma, cver golng to school?

It was not, compared to the lraumas I had gons through, nothing v orvald f*o\m*

any nore, It wasn't that difficult, Thut T Aid have ons very good fri i—rvl

bacane very interasted in zs; f“r'\c vould help me; she would tutor In
and I hed & teacher who adeopted ne,

dho vas ths frispd and vho ez the teacher?

My teache» ¥ane, ihe made oe very speelal amd T szat at her d=zk,
And I was an exampls to all the students; T vowld have t0 speal, and she would
bring other prople, and she rsally helped me Leemendously to 2dapt to the new

system., Tor m@mple, she staried with 2 book with C.A.7., and H AT, and before
I knen I was readling,

lish which T had learned in Gexrmeny, Tt was not Iluent.
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i go: Yes; I wea basten theng, by Tomdimiass. ad
I #is belten 10 the labor casp vhan wa ilt the roads by the Germmna,

Thay vers dissatieflsd wiih the way you sepe Tllding, you ware oo glawp

Someiimos T think Jumt for the anteriadmment; the hrytality of 1ip sonetigs
for the glowness, somebimes for the fun of 1t for ihem, not for ua,

Yem, 1 ¢ould bave piased for & 15 or 16 year-cld, If thay had koown my
ags; I wunld bEvs maver been thare.

T only ask you this booause T bawe & Peallng that you've hlSden avay many
tEingm. ..

Joms of them are avell hidden fron Bep 1t"E very dAfFicult %2 rensmber Weds
things, and T goess your cessclouws mlad = sobs phlriul thlings...tse = gooas by.

I den"% thick you very suppowed 20 be ashamcd bol people prolably dim"4 know
L 'Iﬁ'l»ﬂlﬂﬂ!’u-

T kniow murvivezs 18 ihis day vhe #i1] ood talk &tart 1% I've set oomem, AGl I
thi: Lt"s worse, LI you do not.

E - - — r————— e e e i —— = =i = 1 —




Finger - page 20

Ds No, I got married, T was sick vuvevsesceea.. hopatidis, and I vas sick
threc months.
A carry-over? You don't Imow,

Y: Ihen you were sick in the Torest, there was nothing you ever had,

D: If T survived that typhus, with my legs like this, and T could never walk,
T thought that I was going to have to creep; I thought that I was going +o be
bald, It's a very intoresting 't;hing, and .,pcnding a lot of time a.ni enargy 0o,
I have ralsed my family, time has clapsed, maybe something hasn't healed but
T can cope ifith _-1-, better, and I am atterding any kind 0* co'rrarcncr on thn
Holocaust, ard I'm roading all Holocaust litcrature, I'm also s searching very
desparately, traur,(; to finmd out things about my city. I found out there are
a few people anmd T hope to meet with them in the fall, Amd I called somebody
who was supposed to be my age, but I don't remomber the woman, and her hushamd
ansiered and T told him ttho T vas and where T #Was from, I know nothing about
nim and sald, I met you at the fo;n:of't Just before the end of the war, and you
Aerg hald., It vas d. shock 10 mej; I had forgotten that I was bald, You had no
hair; you had some kind of zround you_ head. I was all of
14, Aind he romembornd that., T was so happy; I sort of uelcomed his remarks.
Lucidly, my halr gsred back im

Y: You haven't meti with this lady.
D: I'z Foping this fall to de it, They have a very small group, 7 or 10 people,

Y From your city? Did they menticn any other mames? Did you know any?
You were =0 young,

DE T vas 5o young and soclally, a litile Bit out of this., They arc ultra-
oxthodox,
Y Your farlly was not orthodox, so you weren't a part of that. das thers a

larre witra-orthedox commumltyy
i ]

D Protably.

bl Tour family might have becn called ....

T: Almost assimilated; they siore Joulsh, but there uas no...
¥y A 1ittle bBit of intelligentsia 7

D: 2Meght. Detlnltely.
1 They probably leok doun on these people as being thelr inferiors,

TDorothy, is there anything else you'd iilke to say aboul youxr experlence?

[}

The only thing I want to say is, we are now, Zrom 211 the litereturs, fimdlng cut
flrst of all vie are all geotting older, survivors, many are gone alrsady, amd

in 2 ccrtain amount of yezrs, 2ll of us will be gone. Qur survival was almost
1ilzo 2 miscion, so ve could survive, amd We can 3ell it, And we have cortainly
told it to our rhill cn, and We told ity and soms of them have even pald the
price and ’ . suffered from listening and finding out about the
tragedinos that have befallen thelr parents. Just last nlght I was looking

for somz articles and T Zound a repor'h that my daughter had written when she

vag fifteen, in the 10 th grade, how the concentratlon ecamps of the worid



Finger - page 21

¢2)

D, con't. vinre affecied the Jevish falth, amd she intervicied me Tfor 1t,

kel

<hich T hed forgotien . Armd she has 2 comment vhich I would I1ike to zead

becausa I think e have to get the younger gencration, or the zccomd geneva-
tion ’L‘EWD-"U'“\l. Aand I was ‘rrry movod yesterday, ard I think T uould like to
nrd with it. “hls is the last pago, called the zuthor's comment:

(ad Susan urites)

Parcorally, T vould have 1o say that there is no vay the concentration

camp of “oxrld dar II could not heve afluched my life since my own “a.rr:_'ly

#as Killced bocause of 14, Iy mother has done more than a sufficlient job

of maldng sure that I understand uwhy 2t is so important to know my herltage
2nd somethirg about the Jowish hlstory. T am far from Jeulsh in the religious
gense. I have my oun concepe ©F oed, and T pruy my oun vay, differently than
Wit is done in the SyTAZOFUn. Tlc{.rﬂm-r, I an shtromgly Jowdl uh ard EkEnowing my
identity, amd being proud of my herliage, and T feel that this is far more
important than how one prays, T think all chil@ren of survivors paid ths
price. I think they all paid differentiy, and it w11l continue Tor a long
time,

Thank you, Doroily.



